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From: David Harriman

To: Petti, David
Cc: Branden Hawkins; Butch Peterson; Travis Anders
Subject: RE: Notification of Hazardous Waste Activity - Used Batteries Tracking System
Date: Friday, January 31, 2025 6:02:08 AM
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SOP - Used Battery Return-Handling-Storage-Removal.pdf

EXTERNAL MESSAGE

This email originated outside of DEP. Please use caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or

responding to this email.

Good morning David:

Attached is our SOP for Used Battery Return, Handling, Storage, and Removal. Reference
page 2 “Employees” section (snapshot below):

Employees:

e Parts Warehouse Personnel

o]
o
o]

Maintain open pathway to used battery collection/storage area(s)
Help in the unloading, handling, and stacking of batteries, as needed
Maintain labeling at used battery collection/storage area(s); Minimum labeling
shall include:

= “UNIVERSAL WASTE - BATTERIES”

= “COLLECTION START DATE: N
Storage of batteries shall not exceed 1-year from the collection start date posted
Inspect used battery storage area(s) for signs of damaged batteries, damaged
secondary containment, leaking batteries, etc.
Assist in neutralizing spilled acidic contents from batteries that have become
damaged and/or have leaked while in storage
Ask for assistance when lifting batteries if weight exceeds 50lbs.

= Assistance in lifting/lowering is required when weight of batteries

exceeds 70lbs.

Ensure adherence to contractor and regulatory procedures of all used batteries
and used battery storage area(s)

Pages following the above include safety/spill precautions, packaging and shipping. Deka/East
Penn is our vendor that picks up the batteries from our RPC facilities. The count the batteries
on each pallet and provide us an acceptance receipt.

This should complete the submission of all requested documents for compliance.

Respectfully,

David R. Harriman II, CES
Environmental Manager

Ring Power Corporation

500 World Commerce Pkwy

St. Augustine, FL 32092

(904) 494-7445 (Corporate office)
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Employees:

Parts Warehouse Personnel

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

i is required when weight of batteries

exceeds 70Ib:

Ensure adherence to contractor and regulatory procedures of all used batteries
and used battery storage area(s)
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PURPOSE:

At Ring Power, keeping our people safe is core to our value of Safety Above All. The purpose of
this SOP is to establish guidelines for the proper return, handling, collection/storage, and
recycle of Lead-Acid batteries used in marine applications, mobile equipment/vehicles, and
power generation units. This SOP will assist employees in the safe return, handling, storage,
and recycle of lead-acid batteries.

SCOPE:

This SOP applies to all Ring Power personnel who come in contact with used lead-acid
batteries.

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:
Managers/Supervisors:

¢ Parts and Warehouse Managers are responsible to assure the used battery
collection/storage area(s) are maintained as follows:
o Batteries are stored in a well-ventilated area
o Batteries stored outside are covered at all times
o Used Batteries are stored on secondary containment pallets
o Batteries separated by style/size/weight:
= 4D/8D
» Class 31
o Battery Spill Kit is readily accessible/available
o Eyewash bottles located and maintained within 100 feet of storage area
o |dentify employees who return, handle, store, and/or send out for recycling of used
batteries
¢ Be aware of locations on Ring Power property where used batteries are returned,
handled, and stored
e Ensure all employees that report to them that return, handle, store, and/or send out for
recycling of used batteries are familiar with this SOP
o Communicate the requirements set forth in this document to all affected employees
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1A Lead Acid Battery Spill Kit contains a neutralizing agent (sodium bicarbonate) and the proper PPE (chemical
resistant gloves, goggles/face shield and apron) to clean up battery acid spills

Parts Warehouse Management:

¢ Conduct periodic inspections of used battery return and storage location(s) to ensure
adherence to this SOP

o Deficiencies shall be communicated to Branch Leaders and/or Branch Safety Committee
when discovered

e Inspect used battery storage area(s) for signs of damaged batteries, damaged
secondary containment, leaking batteries, etc.

o |If a spill is experienced, complete a Ring Power Spill Response Form and submit it to
Ring Power Environmental

Employees:

e Parts Warehouse Personnel
o Maintain open pathway to used battery collection/storage area(s)
o Help in the unloading, handling, and stacking of batteries, as needed
o Maintain labeling at used battery collection/storage area(s); Minimum labeling
shall include:
* “UNIVERSAL WASTE - BATTERIES”
= “COLLECTION START DATE: ”
o Storage of batteries shall not exceed 1-year from the collection start date posted
o Inspect used battery storage area(s) for signs of damaged batteries, damaged
secondary containment, leaking batteries, etc.
o Assist in neutralizing spilled acidic contents from batteries that have become
damaged and/or have leaked while in storage
o Ask for assistance when lifting batteries if weight exceeds 50Ibs.
= Assistance in lifting/lowering is required when weight of batteries
exceeds 70lbs.

o Ensure adherence to contractor and regulatory procedures of all used batteries
and used battery storage area(s)
e Service Shop Personnel
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Neutralize spilled acidic contents of any damaged batteries prior to disposal (see
below)
Place used batteries on appropriate secondary containment pallet based on
classification
Ask for assistance when lifting batteries if weight exceeds 50Ibs.
= Assistance in lifting/lowering is required when weight of batteries
exceeds 70lbs.

e Field Service Personnel

O

Do not accept any damaged batteries from customers’ job sites to be returned as
cores to Ring Power property
If Battery is damaged in transit, neutralize any acidic spillage from damaged
batteries prior to disposition (see below)
Obtain direction from Warehouse associates to place used batteries on
appropriate secondary containment pallet based on classification
Ask for assistance when lifting batteries if weight exceeds 50Ibs.

= Assistance in lifting/lowering is required when weight of batteries exceeds

70lbs.

e ALL Employees

O

O

All employees who return, handle, collect/store, and/or come in contact with used
lead-acid batteries will adhere to the guidelines outlined in this SOP

Appropriate PPE including, but not limited to, chemical gloves, chemical apron,
and chemical goggles shall be worn any time that neutralizing of battery acid is
being conducted

Safety Department

e Audit effectiveness of and compliance with this SOP

e Conduct periodic reviews and updates, as needed, to this SOP

e Provide guidance to employees and management regarding this SOP

e Conduct periodic inspections of used battery storage area(s) and disposal processes
e Assist in selection of appropriate and required PPE, as needed

Environmental & Facilities
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o Audit effectiveness of and compliance with this SOP
e Conduct periodic reviews and updates, as needed, to this SOP
¢ Provide guidance to employees and management regarding this SOP

PROCEDURE
Used Battery Return

e Used batteries turned in through the Parts Department will be placed in the used battery
storage area(s) by Parts Warehouse personnel

e Used batteries replaced by Service Personnel (both Shop & Field) will be placed in the
used battery storage area(s) by the Service Personnel

e Collaboration between Parts and Service personnel should take place to further
coordinate return processes of a unique or circumstantial nature

Used Battery Handling

e Batteries returned to and/or placed into storage in the used battery storage area(s) shall
be handled appropriately:
o Safe handling of batteries shall take place and exclude tossing, throwing, and/or
rolling of batteries
o Batteries shall not be dropped from heights when being returned to and/or placed
into the used battery storage area(s)
o Employees are encouraged to seek assistance when lifting used batteries if
weight exceeds 50Ibs.
= Employees are required to seek assistance when lifting/lowering
batteries when weight of batteries exceeds 70lbs.
¢ Any damaged, leaking batteries that are put into the used battery storage area will be
immediately placed over secondary containment and then neutralized by the use of a
chemical agent by the individual who places it there
o Appropriate PPE including, but not limited to, chemical gloves, chemical apron,
and chemical goggles shall be worn any time that neutralizing of battery acid is
being conducted
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Used Battery Storage

Used batteries must be stored in an open-air, well-ventilated area away from any
sources of ignition, open flame, or excessive heat

o Used batteries must be stored a minimum of 25ft from any ignition source, open
flame, or excessive heat

o Used batteries must be stored a minimum of 25ft from storage of flammable
and/or combustible materials, including NFPA flammable cabinets

Used batteries, when stored outside, must be stored under a covered area to protect
them from the elements and potential hazards associated to inclement weather
Precautions should be taken to prevent the terminals from short-circuiting.

o Stacking undamaged polypropylene (plastic case) batteries will not create a
short-circuit risk, however, DO NOT stack metal/steel case batteries directly on
top of battery terminals as this could lead to a fire risk

o Stack used batteries in a vertical, upright position, whereby the plastic bottom of
the battery is resting on the terminals of the underlying used battery

o Segregate metal/steel case used batteries from polypropylene case used
batteries as to minimize the risk of short-circuiting due to terminal contacts

o DO NOT stack metal/steel case used batteries under any circumstance without
approval from the Safety Department

Used batteries shall be stored on secondary containment so as to contain any
electrolyte, acidic, and/or other potential spillage or leakage

o Secondary containment shall be in a location where the potential for contact with
mobile equipment (such as forklifts, golf carts, service vehicles, etc.) is minimal.

o Secondary containment shall be in a location away from floor drains or natural
water sources to minimize environmental exposures and/or contaminations

Used Battery Pick-Up & Disposition Process

Instructions for Stacking Batteries

(reference EastPenn Used Battery Stacking & Wrapping Guidelines)

1) Select a sturdy pallet with no broken or missing boards. Be sure there are no nails

sticking up, which could puncture the batteries. Stack return battery pallet using pallet
provided with new shipment if possible.





https://www.eastpennmanufacturing.com/wp-content/uploads/Stacking-and-Wrapping-Used-Batteries-on-Pallets-1504.pdf
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2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Place a layer of cardboard on the pallet to prevent the batteries from sliding off of the
pallet.

Make the first layer of batteries level and as close together as possible. If some of the
batteries are shorter, they should be placed in the center of layers. Any taller batteries
should be placed on the top layer.

“Place waffleboard (preferred) or sufficient cardboard (multiple sheets if necessary)
between all layers, including the top layer of batteries to prevent the possibility of
puncturing the batteries above and short circuit. Place cardboard on top of pallet.

NOTE: 4D and 8D used batteries will be stacked in an orderly fashion, not to exceed two
tiers high to prevent damage to batteries and potential acid releases/spills/leaks.

Class 31/automotive used batteries will be stacked in an orderly fashion, not to exceed
three tiers high to prevent damage to batteries and potential acid releases/spills/leaks.

Side Terminal Batteries
Batteries must be stacked so the posts are facing away from each other and not facing
towards the outside of the pallet. Side terminals must never touch.

CORRECT

Top Terminal Batteries

Top posts must be positioned toward the outside of the pallet so the layer above it leans
toward the center. Make sure that no batteries are overhanging the waffleboard or
sheets of cardboard.
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Stud Post Batteries

7) Stud post batteries (Marine, Group 31, Golf Car) should be on the top layer. If this is not
possible, you will need extra layers of cardboard between the layers of batteries to
prevent punctures. This is also important when stacking three layers high.

Damaged Batteries — Not Leaking

8) Batteries that have been compromised with observable damage but not visibly leaking
electrolyte, shall be put in heavyweight polyethylene plastic bags (minimum: 6 mil),
properly sealed with plastic tie and placed in the middle of the top layer.








. : Used Battery Return, Handling,
Ring Power @ Storage, and Removal SOP

Issue Date: January 30%", 2023 Author: Jose Leites, WCC Parts Store Manager
Gary Mock, Field Safety Coordinator
David Harriman, Environmental Manager

Reference: 40 CFR 261-262, 264; 29 CFR Approved by: Bryan Johnson, Safety Director
1910.132-133, 1910.1200 Shane Mclaughlin, VP
Facilities/Purchasing/Security/Telecom

Mike Furlough, AVP Territorial Parts Operations
Manager

WARNING
Avoid skin contact with sulfuric acid in the following step. Sulfuric acid is
potentially explosive in concentrated form; it is a highly corrosive chemical that
If contact with skin, it can cause severe skin burns; If inhaled, vapors can
irritate the nose and throat and cause difficulties breathing; if contact with the
eyes, sulfuric acid can burn the eyes and possibly cause blindness; if ingested,
sulfuric acid can burn holes in the throat and stomach.

NOTE
Batteries that are leaking or have visible signs of leakage shall not be shipped; they
shall be handled and dispositioned as a hazardous waste.

Damaged Batteries — Leaking

1. Don the proper PPE as described in the SDS

2. As quickly as possible, contain the spill/release using berms or Pig mat absorbents
obtained from the spill kit.

3. Slowly add the neutralizing agent (sodium bicarbonate/baking soda or soda ash) into the
electrolyte, mixing the material into a paste-like material.

4. Continue to add the neutralizing agent until all the liquid is absorbed into the paste
material.

5. Test the mixture/material for pH to ensure the material is neutral; add additional
neutralizing agent if necessary to establish a neutral mixture.
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1)

2)

3)

4)

Collect the mixture/material, making sure that there is no liquid residue present; place
the mixture material into a heavyweight polyethylene plastic bag (minimum 6 mil).

Seal the bag and apply a label indicating what the material is.

If the battery is no longer leaking, wrap the battery per step 8 in the “Damaged Battery —
Not Leaking” procedure above.

Contact Ring Power Environmental at (904) 494-7445.

Instructions for Wrapping Pallets
(reference EastPenn Used Battery Stacking & Wrapping Guidelines)

All batteries must be secured to the pallet with stretch wrap. Stretch
wrap works best if it is pulled tight before stretching it around the
corners. Figure 4 shows a properly wrapped pallet.

Start with the stretch wrap turned sideway to create a rope effect (see fig. 1). Wrap
around the top layer four or five times.?

Still using the rope effect, wrap the top layer twice* again, crossing over the top each
time to form an “X-pattern.” This will pull the batteries towards the center to prevent
batteries from falling off of the pallet, a DOT requirement.

Hold the stretch wrap open (see fig. 2 and 3), wrap around the bottom layer four to five
times*, being sure to catch the edges of the pallet.?

Finally, after placing cardboard on top of the batteries, wrap around the top layer four or
five times* with the stretch wrap in the open effect and tear at the last corner. ?





https://www.eastpennmanufacturing.com/wp-content/uploads/Stacking-and-Wrapping-Used-Batteries-on-Pallets-1504.pdf
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Figure 4

2 Wrap as many times as necessary to stabilize the load

Conclusion

At Ring Power, our employees’ safety is of the utmost importance and comes before everything
that we do. Our culture of Safety Above All is vital to the success of our people and our
business. Understanding that hazards do exist and that they can be mitigated through proper
channels such as engineering, administration, and PPE helps our people to stay safe when
performing procedures associated to used batteries.

Used battery procedures are in place to prevent employee injury and/or exposure during and/or
after the return, handling, storage, and/or disposal process while maintaining adherence to all
environmental and regulatory requirements. Through continued awareness, and adherence to
this SOP, we can further minimize and eliminate the hazards associated to these processes.
Keeping each and every employee safe will take priority over all we do in an effort to make Ring
Power a world-class health and safety organization.









(813) 671-3700 (Tampa office)

David.Harriman@RingPower.com

Environmental@RingPower.com

From: Petti, David <David.Petti@FloridaDEP.gov>

Sent: Monday, January 27, 2025 8:53 AM

To: David Harriman <David.Harriman@ringpower.com>
Subject: RE: Notification of Hazardous Waste Activity

CAUTION [EXTERNAL]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize

the sender and know the content is safe.

David

Provide the used oil acceptance records for January 23, 2022, January 23, 2023 and January 23, 2024
Describe the tracking system you have put in place to track time on site for used battery’s

Training documentation still outstanding

Modified contingency plan posted still outstanding

Provide the outstanding items by the end of the week, We need to wrap this up

David Petti

Environmental Specialist III / Ecologist

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Southwest District — Temple Terrace

13051 N. Telecom Pkwy, #101

Temple Terrace, FL 33637

David.Petti@floridadep.gov
Office: 813.470.5748
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